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NOTICE TO ALL BIDDERS AND PLANHOLDERS 
The Contract Documents for the above-referenced Project are modified as set forth in this Addendum.   
The original Contract Documents and any previously issued addenda remain in full force and effect, 
except as modified by this Addendum, which is hereby made part of the Contract Documents.  Bidder 
shall take this Addendum into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid, and shall acknowledge 
receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the Bid Form. 
 
BID SUBMITTAL DEADLINE 
 

The bid submittal deadline remains the same and is not changed by this Addendum.  
 
1.0 – SPECIFICATIONS N/A 
Item Section No. Description of Change 

1.1   
1.2   
1.3   

 
2.0 – DRAWINGS N/A 
Item Drawing No. Description of Change 

2.1   
2.2   
2.3   

 
3.0 – QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
The following questions and answers are provided as a matter of information to clarify issues raised about 
the Contract Documents.  To the extent that changes to the Contract Documents are required based on 
the questions received, the Contract Documents have been modified as noted above in the Specifications 
and Drawings sections of this Addendum. 
Item Questions and Answers 

3.1 Question: Do you assume your online classes will be filled completely by students from the 
three county regions? Please explain. 
Answer: The vast majority of our current students come from our three-county region, since we 
are a community college with a strong presence in our area. However, we would like to 
determine whether there is potential for our program to gain more presence outside 
Pennsylvania.  

3.2 Question:  How would you define your current audience? How would you define your ideal 
target audience? 
Answer:  These are questions that we hope the research data will help us answer. We 
currently don’t have a “typical” online student - they vary in ages from high school to older adult, 
and across a range of demographics. 

3.3 Question:  Do you ever interview students who are accepted and decide not to attend? What 
are their reasons? 
Answer:  No, we don’t interview students who decide not to attend LCCC. 
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3.4 Question: What’s the primary reason students decide to pursue classes at LCCC? 
Answer: Typically, cost-effectiveness is one of the top reasons that students register at LCCC. 
As a community college, we also offer open acceptance for all students and a range of 
convenient options (such as online classes), which appeal to many of our students. 

3.5 Question: What is your current application volume? What is your acceptance rate? What is 
your yield rate? Do you have targets for these metrics? 
Answer: We will share detailed statistics with the agency that is selected for the contract. 
Awareness is not a problem in our three-county region, but would be a challenge outside our 
region. 

3.6 Question: Explain your current understanding of the market potential? What research has 
been done to support the goal of 20K online enrollment? 
Answer:  We are hoping that the research data can tell us whether the goal of 20,000 credits is 
realistic, and help us determine the best approach for working toward that goal. 

3.7 Question: What program(s) are most popular at LCCC? 
Answer: Based on Fall 2017 figures, LCCC’s most popular online programs are: 
Liberal Arts A.A   
General Studies A.A  
Business Administration A.A  
Business Management A.A.S  
Criminal Justice A.A.S  

3.8 Question: Are there any popular programs still not offered online? 
Answer: The following popular programs are close to being fully online. We hope to make them 
100% online in future: 
Health Information Technology A.A.S  
Early Childhood Education A.A.S  
Psychology A.S  

3.9 Question: Is there a unique course offering or learning experience that would extend LCCC’s 
reach beyond the three county regions? 
Answer: We don’t currently have any unique course offerings that would draw in students from 
outside the region. We are hoping the research will help identify online course offerings that are 
in demand among students, so that LCCC can consider developing those courses. 

3.10 Question: What’s essential to foster a sense of belonging to LCCC for an online student? 
Answer: Students use a Learning Management System to access their classes, coursework, 
communicate with professors, etc. They also have access to tutoring and other services online. 

3.11 Question: Are the sample data points and analysis actual questions you’d like the research to 
answer?   
Answer: Yes, if possible. 

3.12 Question: Are there additional specific questions you want to be sure we cover? 
Answer: No, but we welcome recommendations on data that you believe would be useful for us 
to understand our market potential. 

3.13 Question: Are there any restrictions about surveying current students, faculty or alumni? For 
example, would we be able to send an email or do an intercept on site visitors? 
Answer: Surveys are outside the scope of this project. 

3.14 Question: What is your budget for this project? 
Answer: The RFP is designed to solicit budget estimates for this project. 

3.15 Question: How essential is it to collect data from local students or would LCCC be willing to 
accept that the characteristics of local/regional online students resemble the characteristics of 
online students nationally? 
Answer: It is important to us to understand if there is a difference between local students and 
national students, because that may affect how we market to them. 
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3.16 Question: You mention a consultation or ‘discovery session’ in Appendix A, are you looking for 
this to be held face-to-face? 
Answer: The consultations can be held via phone or video conference. 

3.17 Question: You state that you will share your own ‘institutional research data’ with the vendor, 
can we please ask what data points this includes? 
Answer: This includes data on student demographics by year, semester and program. 

3.18 Question: Where you state “Please submit your proposal as a report with the attached table of 
requirements completed with pricing”, please can we confirm that you are referring to the 
requirements of "What is the Target Audience", "What is the Potential for Growth" and "What 
Programs are in Demand" in Appendix A and the sample data points and analysis you would like 
the vendor to address in each requirement? And that there shouldn’t be another table of 
requirements attached? 
Answer: That’s correct. We would like the pricing listed in the table by section - "What is the 
Target Audience,” "What is the Potential for Growth" and "What Programs are in Demand." 

3.19 Question: Some of the demographic information that you seek re: online education may not be 
available at the level of specificity that you seek (for example, narrowing those who are taking 
online classes in the region (not just those at LCCC), percentage of home school students who 
plan to go on to college). Are the Sample Data points and analysis simply examples of the types 
of insights that you seek or are those requirements? Are you willing to consider alternative 
methods to help inform key target populations who are interested in pursuing online education at 
LCCC? 
Answer: Yes, we are willing to consider alternative methods, but the data must give us a 
comprehensive and thorough understanding of our target populations. 

3.20 Question: In 2014, LCCC announced an RFP for customer research. Was that project ever 
awarded? If so, can you share who completed the work and the final work product? 
Answer: The market research was completed by Paskill Stapleton & Lord in the spring 2015. 
The results will be made available to the contracted vendor but not at this proposal stage. 

3.21 Question: The timeline suggests that the work will be completed in two budget cycles 
(assuming the budget year begins on July 1). What impact, if any, will that have on the available 
budget? Will there be an impetus to complete the work before or after July 1 for billing purposes? 
Answer: The project will be over two budget cycles, but that process will not impact the 
requisition and purchase order process. The proposal doesn't need to address this, but should 
assign costs to the elements in the proposal. Timeline for completion will be over a three-month 
period and work does not need to be completed by July 1. Estimated project timeframe will be 
May through August. 

3.22 Question: Do you have the ability to grow online programming in other PA counties outside of 
Lehigh, Carbon, and Schuylkill counties?   
Answer: No, we cannot market in Pennsylvania outside our three-county region. We are able to 
market within those three counties and outside Pennsylvania. 

3.23 Question: Are there any known limitations to growing online programming in PA counties 
outside of Lehigh, Carbon, and Schuylkill counties? 
Answer: See answer to above question. 

3.24 Question: It may be necessary to survey students currently (and recently) enrolled in LCCC’s 
online programs. Will the college be able to provide a file with contact information (email 
addresses) for those students that the vendor can use to field a survey for this group? 
Answer: Surveys are outside the scope of this project. 

3.25 Question: Could you define what you mean by “East Coast”, see question 3 in Appendix A.  
Would this be just the mid-Atlantic region, for instance, or would this extend the entire east coast 
from Maine to Florida? 
Answer: We are primarily interested in the Mid-Atlantic region, but would welcome data for the 
entire East Coast. 
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3.26 Question: Are there any potential parameters/limits the college has around program offerings? 

This could help us focus our research since there could be dozens of potential program 
opportunities, particularly if we are looking more broadly along the “East Coast.” 
Answer: Our biggest challenges to offering more programs 100% online have been limitations 
of labs and testing. We have been unable to offer some programs 100% online due to the 
requirement of a science lab, but have allowed students to take that lab at a college that is local 
to them, and then transfer the credits to LCCC. Some of our courses also require a proctored 
test (often math and science courses), in which case the student would need to go to a testing 
center, which also keeps the class from being 100% online. 

3.27 Question: Do you have contact information for prospective students such as email and phone 
numbers? 
Answer: Yes, we have contact information for prospective students, but please be aware that 
surveys are outside the scope of this project. 

  

 
 
 

END OF ADDENDUM 


